
1

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF VIRGINIA

NORFOLK DIVISION

ROY L. PERRY-BEY, Civil Action No. 219cv344
PHILLIP WEBSTER, DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL
GEORGE BOWE,
ANTHONY HAROLD,
ROBERT LEE SIMPSON,
CLARENCE LAWSON,
MARY E. HILL,
CORNELL MORRIS,
ESPER L. HURDLE, JR.,
EARNEST W. GIBBS,
WALTER WATSON,
ANTHONY W. ELLIOT,
JOHN G. TAYLOR,
LAWRENCE TAYLOR,
NEAL C. MORRISON, JR.,
RONALD M. GREEN, as Special Representative
of the Estate of WENDELL ALONZO WILLIS,
Deceased, DANIEL DELOACH,
VIVIAN A. ANDERSON,
and all others similarly situated,

Plaintiffs,
v.

RYAN MCCARTHY, Acting Secretary of the Army,
RICHARD V.SPENCER, Secretary of the Navy,
HEATHER WILSON, Secretary of the Air Force and
ROBERT WILKIE, Secretary of the Veterans Affairs,

Defendants.

AMENDED COMPLAINT

COMES NOW, the Plaintiffs, DAV Roy L. Perry-Bey, et al., prose, and for their
Amended Complaint states as follows:
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INTRODUCTION

Since World War I, World War II, Korean War, Laotian Civil War,

Lebanon Crisis, Vietnam War, Korean DMZ Conflict, Dominican Civil War,

Multinational Intervention in Lebanon, Invasion of Grenada, Gulf War, Iraq

War, Syrian Civil War, Afghanistan War, Yemen War, Somalia War, Libya

War, Niger War and executive war making privileges put in place after the

September 11th attacks, thousands of Army, Air force Marine Crops and

Navy veterans have deployed or pending deployment to combat zones across

the globe or served on military bases and returned home suffering invisible

wounds of war or service connected injury. Instead of receiving a waiver or

the mental health or medical treatment they deserved, many of these service

members are required to wait unreasonable longer times for unfavorable

decisions about VA compensation claims or separated from the military

with Honorable, Honorable Chapter 5, AR 635-40 or less-than-Honorable

discharges due to minor infractions attributable to the effects of injury or

wartime trauma.

These veterans are permanently stigmatized and barred from accessing

essential benefits like the GI bill and much-needed dental, medical treatment

or mental health care.

Congress established Discharge Review Boards during World War II

to allow veterans improperly or inequitably discharged from the United States

military the opportunity to seek relief from such wrongful punishment. In
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establishing these Boards, Congress recognized that disciplinary decisions

made in the heat of battle should not necessarily be life sentences for young

veterans with less-than-Honorable discharges.

Yet, the Army, Air Force and the Naval Discharge Review Boards,

NDRB which adjudicates applications from the Army and Navy veterans

seeking to upgrade their Honorable or less-than-Honorable discharges,

rejects the petitions of nearly all who apply.

The Army, Air Force and Navy, NDRB does so without clearly

explaining what a veteran must show to prevail and without applying the

proper legal standards. DAV Roy L. Perry-Bey, Phillip Webster, George

Bowe, Anthony Harold, Robert Lee Simpson, Clarence Lawson, Mary E.

Hill, Cornell Morris, Esper L. Hurdle, Jr., Earnest W. Gibbs, Walter

Watson, Anthony Elliot, John G. Taylor, Lawrence Taylor, Neal C.

Morrison, Wendell Alonzo Willis, Daniel DeLoach and Dr. Vivian A.

Anderson, DAVS agent thus bring this class action on behalf of Army,

Air Force and Navy veterans who continue to be unlawfully denied benefits,

discharge upgrade, corrections or disability which is proximately due to or

the result of a service connected disease or injury.

DAV Roy L. Perry-Bey served his country with distinction from October

5, 1979 to January 14, 1980. At just twenty-one years old, Mr. Perry-Bey was

physically assaulted by an Officer, Sergeant Edwards, threatened with physical

assault by Sergeant Marsh and held in detention during his military service at
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Fort Benning Georgia. After experiencing dental, neck, back, abdominal injury

and pain, abruptly ending his Military career, leaving him functionally impaired

with a wife and two-children to support in Virginia, placed in emergency

Military housing through Red Cross, Mr. Perry-Bey, began struggling with

intense chronic joint pain and common symptoms of Post-Traumatic Stress

Disorder (PTSD), such as increased difficulty sleeping or concentrating,

depression, insomnia and frequently felt angry or irritated. Once back home,

these symptoms worsened. He experienced severe anxiety, suicide and rapid

mood swings, night sweats, and, like many with injury or PTSD, self-medicated

with alcohol, prescription and illegal drugs. For this incident of unprovoked

injury or abuse, Mr. Perry-Bey under duress received an Honorable discharge,

without meeting with the medical board and repeatedly denied service

connected disability compensation for injury or mental health conditions

incurred or aggravated during his military service as a result of physical

assault and abuse under the Benefits Delivery at Discharge (BDD) program,

and his appeal on July 26, 2018, and PTSD or PTSD related condition claim.

Phillip J. Webster served his country in the U. S. Navy with distinction

from July 1, 1980 until discharge with a Honorable Discharge January 1, 2000,

at the age of 17. Mr. Webster was already from the start of his career within the

U. S. Navy as an E4 until his retirement as E7, Chief Petty Officer, leading in

performance Ship Board Aircraft Rescue Firefighter and an Investigator who

witnessed many casualties during his career.
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After experiencing intense combat-and the death of many close friends

and other crew members loss of life and body parts, Mr. Webster began

struggling with common systems of Severe Post Traumatic Stress Disorder

(PTSD), such as nightmares, flashbacks, hyper vigilance, deep depression,

sleep deprivation, and witnessing suicide episodes which cause him to indulge

in substance abuse with Alcohol and other drugs to suppressed what he witness

during his career within the U. S. Navy.

Once back home and retired, these symptoms of PTSD worsened. He

experienced severe anxiety and rapid mood swings and like many with PTSD,

he took medication trying to reduce what he was enduring in order to cope with

what he experienced for 20 years of serving in the U. S. Navy.

When he applied for VA Benefits, he only received 20% and denied all

other ailments relating to service connected ailments endured while enlisted

within the U.S. Navy.

Mr. George Bowe served his country with distinction from May 10, 1977

until January 16, 1979, at the age of 21. He was discharged with Under-Other-

Than-Honorable-Condition.

Mr. Bowe was a PV1 E1experienced intense prejudice and severe Post

Traumatic Stress Disorder, severe anger, nightmares, flashback, severe sleep

deprivation, fear and went AWOL. He felt hopelessly afraid of being locked

up for an incident that was of no fault of his own. He had been set up by

holding a bag that had drugs within. Another Soldier had asked him to hold his
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bag of lunch, and later finding out that it was drugs, Mr. Bowe chose to go

AWOL in fear of being locked up. However he continued to suffer with PTSD.

When back home he found himself self-medicating with Alcohol, and

street drugs rendered him severe health problems that he continues to suffer

with to this day. He received for his discharge Under-Other-Than-Honorable-

Condition.

Volunteers Improving Virginia’s Standards Community Development

Corporation (VIV’s, Inc.) serves and advocate for Disabled Veterans with

Honorable and Other-Than-Honorable Condition. Mr. Bowe is one of the

Disabled American Veteran that VIVS, Inc. assist. Mr. Bowe served his

nation yet experienced hardship due to his Under-Other-Tan-Honorable-

Condition.

DAV Anthony Harold served his country with distinction from August 16,

1972 until March 15, 1973 in the U. S. Navy at just 18 years old.

Mr. Harold was a St E1 aboard a Naval Carrier when he was place in the

Brigg for fighting another Sailor of 30 days. He served and was severely injured

by the Commander which was over him and many others.

Mr. Harold experienced the worse endeavor by a Commander aboard the

ship would pick and choose those young innocent Sailors he desired to engage

in Military Sexual Trauma (MST).
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Mr. Harold experienced the worse abuse, rape and assaulted by a

Commander not interested in appropriately assisting those in his care, but

rather force under those he forced into being raped, assaulted and abused.

Mr. Harold stood his ground to let the Commander know that he was not

a homosexual and tired of being treated with worse abuse, rape and assault that

he endured. The Commander tried to kill Mr. Anthony Harold when he took an

iron dust pan and hit him in his head and cracking his skull to expose his Brain.

When admitted with the hospital, he was approached and told that he was

going to be released from the U. S. Navy providing he never mention what he

endured. Mr. Harold requested to receive a Medical Honorable Discharge in

order to acquire his VA Benefits but only receive an Honorable Discharged.

Mr. Harold after discharge couldn’t find gainful employment due to

severe Migraine Headache, Schizophrenia and heavy substance abuse and

Alcohol.

He further experienced in tense struggle with severe Post Traumatic

Stress Disorder (PTSD), such a nightmares, flashbacks, severe depression,

hearing voices, severe anxiety, mood swings of the worse kind which has

worsen over the years since being enlisted.

The symptoms worsen as his age increase, self medicating with street

drugs to suppress the pain of continuous flashbacks of what he endured while

enlisted in the U. S. Navy.
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Mr. Anthony Harold who served his nation, yet experience hardship due

to not receiving Medical Records were lost and he has not recognize at having

experiencing serve hardship throughout his life after being discharged. He has

only received a VA Pension which is very low.

The Veteran Affairs denied his claim for VA Benefits due to his records

being lost or missing.

DAV Robert L. Simpson served in the U. S. Army with distinction from

November 16, 1965 until October 15, 1967, he was discharged with a Physical

Discharge rather than what he should have received as a Medical Discharge due

to the Seizures that he acquired while being subjected to severe training that

caused Migraine Headaches. He warned his superiors about the headaches, but

he was ignored until they became so severe he had to be hospitalized.

His physician recommended that he be discharged with a Medical

Discharged, but he received a Physical Discharged, meaning that he wasn’t

physically fit to continue in the U. S. Army.

When Mr. Simpson filed for his VA Benefits, he was denied and received

a Veterans Pension. After the Pension reached $98,000, Mr. Simpson was told

that he had to repay the VA and that they would take his Social Security.

Dr. Vivian Anderson, wrote a letter to the Under Secretary, who sent a

message to me stipulating that they thanked me for bringing that to their

attention, and the funds were waived. However, Debt Management of the

VA contacted Mr. Simpson to state that he couldn’t use Dr. Anderson to assist
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him, although I have his Power of Attorney to assist him with all his business

and concerns.

As it applies to the Seizure, Mr. Simpson was physically fit to enlist in

the U. S. Army and he was and continue to be denied service connected

ailments that are the Seizures and especially Post Traumatic Stress Disorder

(PTSD).

Mr. Simpson obtained a notarized letter from a High School mate who

played sports and knew him prior to enlisting in the U. S. Army, stipulating

that Mr. Simpson didn’t have Seizures and he was physically fit to be enlisted

in the U. S. Army.

After the Seizures, Mr. Simpson was enduring, which turned to Epileptic

Seizures which caused him severe ailments with his Heart. Once he endured

Heart Surgery in the McQuire VA Hospital in Richmond, Virginia, the machine

that was used in the surgery to bring his blood back into his body warm, was

severely contaminated. He never received any award for this Medical

Malpractice from that VA Hospital nor a right to acquire his VA Benefits.

Mr. Simpson has been denied over and over again for his VA Benefits

and was denied again on March 2019.

Mr. Robert Simpson who served his nation well, until his severe ailment

he experienced was and continue to be a hardship due to his Physical

Disability-Honorable Discharge.
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DAV Mr. Clarence Lawson served his country with distinction from

January 22, 1968 until September 18, 1970, as a PVS E2 in the U. S. Army in

the invasion of the Vietnam War. He received Other-Than-Honorable-Condition.

After experiencing intense combat and the death of his close friend and

squad mate’s drowning, even though other Caucasian Soldiers could assist him,

but wouldn’t within the South of Vietnam era.

Mr. Lawson began experiencing episodes of not desiring to continue to

serve in that Vietnam War while struggling with severe symptoms of severe

Post Traumatic Stress Disorder (PTSD); nightmares, flashbacks, hyper vigilance,

mood swings, substance abuse with drugs that were plentiful, sleep deprivation,

anger, mood swings, etc. He felt that no matter what he would do, in regard to

the severe prejudice he endured, that he would not acquire the necessary Mental

Health care he so desperately needed.

Mr. Lawson severe sleep deprivation and which caused him to break and

try to enter into a NCO Club to acquire Alcohol and drugs, in order to help him

to sleep. And, this assisted towards him receiving Other-Than-Honorable-

Discharge.

Mr. Lawson who served his nation, yet experienced hardship due to the

Other-Than-Honorable-Condition.

DAV Mary E. Hill served her country with distinction from January 24,

1979 to February 7, 1980. At just eighteen years old, during Basic Training at
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Lackland, AFB in San Antonio, Texas. Ms. Hill was informed she “damaged

goods” and Honorable Discharged.

Ms. Hill was in the barracks and had complained to the Drill Sergeant

she was having pain in her back and it was excruciating the Drill Sergeant

started yelling and spitting in her face. He began screaming and accused Ms.

Hill that she was trying to get out of duty. She was not. Ms. Hill went to

medical at Lackland and they ran test. Medical prescribed pain pills and Ms.

Hill was placed on restricted duty and sent back to her barracks. While She

was in the barracks alone, Ms. Hill was sexually assaulted or abused by the

unit Drill Sergeant.

After the MST, Ms. Hill was afraid to tell anyone. She did not think

anyone would believe her as an African American Female, especially since it

was the Drill Sergeant who sexually assaulted her and he was a White Male.

He was the one who had already accused Ms. Hill of lying about my back.

Ms. Hill was sent back to medical because she was not getting better,

since She could not participate in the physical training. She was asked about her

back and if She had problems before the military. She never had any prior back

pain to the point of chronic pain when She entered service or to the point that

She was experiencing in basic training. Ms. Hill was told it was a condition that

existed prior to service. That is not true. She was given a full entry

examination.
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DAV Ms. Hill military sexual trauma “MST”, back injury, headaches,

depression, stress and anxiety was incurred or aggravated during her military

service.

The military officials gave Ms. Hill no options. Wilford Hall Medical

Center Officials informed Ms. Hill they were discharging her because She had a

previous medical condition with her back. Then the Drill Sergeant told Ms. Hill

was being discharged because She was “damaged goods.”

Ms. Hill was severely traumatized. She was given no resources. She was

18 years old, did not and could not tell her parents what happened. Ms. Hill has

been very depressed and had suicidal inclinations. To this day She struggles

with relationships. She relives this traumatized incident everyday. She is 59

years-old and this affects her every day. No one helped her, military officials

just sent Ms. Hill home. She has never been married because She struggles with

PTSD, depression, anxiety and relationships as a result of this MST. She was

denied on December 18, 2012 , her service connected disability compensation

for injury and PTSD claim, for mental health conditions incurred or aggravated

during her military service as a result of back injury and MST, on June 25,

2019.

DAV Cornel Morris served his country with distinction in the U. S. Army,

from September 9, 1972 until August 8, 1982, at just 17 years old and a Sgt.

After experiencing intense combat within the U.S. Army and handling

severe training of other Soldiers, DAV Morris began struggling with common
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symptoms of Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder (PTSD), such as nightmares,

severe anxiety, deep depression, and hyper vigilance.

Once back home, these symptoms worsened. DAV Morris experienced

severe episodes of rapid mood swings and like many with PTSD, he self-

medicated with illegal drug. DAV Morris circumstances got so bad due to not

being able to acquire his VA Benefit, he spent time incarcerated and now

having to pay back to the VA funds that he had never received.

Volunteers Improving Virginia’s Standards Community Development

Corporation is a Corporation located in Chesapeake, Virginia and serves and

advocates for Disabled American Veterans(DAVS) with Honorable or Other -

Than-Honorable Discharges. Its DAVS)which includes DAV Morris who

served his nation well, yet experience hardship due to being denied VA

Benefits with a Honorable Discharge.

DAV Esper Hurdle, Jr. served his country with distinction in the U. S.

Army, from August 8, 1972 until August 8, 1974, at just 19 years old and a SPC

E1.

After experiencing a severe fall through a deep hole while enlisted in the

U. S. Army, DAV Hurdle, Jr. experience a broken right leg with both ankles

severely damaged. DAV Hurdle, Jr. had to have severe neck and back surgeries

as a result of the previous service connected ailments. In addition, he has been

declared permanently disabled due to this severe fall.
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DAV Hurdle, Jr. began struggling with severe symptoms of Post-

Traumatic Stress Disorder (PTSD), such as nightmares, mood swings, deep and

severe depression, severe anxiety, anger, flashbacks and nightmares of

continuously falling in a hole and never getting out.

As many like DAV Hurdle, Jr. once back home, these symptoms

worsened. DAV Hurdle, Jr. experience severe bouts of PTSD and, like many

with PTSD, he self-medicated with an dangerous drugs until his is nearly abled

to walk without falling.

Volunteers Improving Virginia’s Standards Community Development

Corporation is a Corporation located in Chesapeake, Virginia and serves and

advocates for Disabled American Veterans(DAVS) with Honorable or Other -

Than-Honorable Discharges. Its DAVS which includes DAV Hurdle, Jr. who

served his nation well, yet experience hardship due to being denied VA Benefits

with being totally disabled and received an Ho Honorable Discharge.

DAV Ernest W. Gibbs served his country with distinction in the U. S.

Army from August 8, 1976 until August 8, 1979, at just 19 years old. E4.

Mr. Ernest W. Gibbs was already an E4 and began struggling with

common symptoms of Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder (PTSD), such as

nightmares, flashback, loud ringing in he ears, severe Sleep Deprivation, Heart

Attack, anger, coping from day today and hyper vigilance.

Once back home, these symptoms worsened. He experienced severe

anxiety and rapid mood swings and, like many with PTSD, he tried to cope, but
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realized that he had to seek aid from the VA in order to keep from using

Alcohol and other drugs other than prescribed medication.

Volunteers Improving Virginia’s Standards Community Development

Corporation is a Corporation located in Chesapeake, Virginia that serves and

advocates for Disabled American Veterans(DAVS) with Honorable or Other -

Than-Honorable Discharges. It’s DAVS include DAV Gibbs who served his

nation well, yet experience hardship of not acquiring his VA Benefits with

severe service connected ailments, but acquired his Honorable Discharge.

DAV Walter Watson served his country with distinction from August 10,

1976 until March 10, 1976, as a E1 to E4 in the U. S. Army. He received Other-

Than-Honorable-Condition.

After experiencing hardships while serving, DAV Watson found it hard to

adjust to serving his country due to severe being under threats and duress he

began struggling with severe Post Traumatic Stress Disorder such as deep and

severe depression, severe Sleep Deprivation of restless nights with fear and

mindful duress, anger, coping from day to day and even after DAV Watson soon

found himself drowning in Alcohol to drown out the thoughts that troubled him

to no end even when he was discharged, which included service connected

ailments.

DAV Anthony W. Elliot served his country with distinction from April 15,

1985 until April 15, 1993, as a PLC E3 in the U. S. Army National Guard. Mr.

Elliot later was transferred to Fort Gordon in Augusta, Georgia, to receive AIT Lineman
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Telephone Switch Board training where during around the middle of the eight (8) week course,

Mr. Elliot had fallen from an eighteen (18) to twenty (20) foot telephone pole injuring his left

foot and neck, leaving him shocked and traumatized. Subsequently, Mr. Elliot personal

injury claim filed in 1995, and his PTSD claim in 2018, for service connected

disability compensation for injury or mental health conditions incurred or

aggravated during his military service was denied. Mr. Elliot continues to

suffer with sever neck, foot and PTSD related conditions, depression and

anxiety disorder. He received an Honorable discharge.

DAV John G. Taylor served his country with distinction in the U. S.

Army from November 11, 1978 Until December12, 1979. At just 18 years old.

DAV Taylor was a SPC 4.

After experiencing intense training and since he has been discharged,

DAV Taylor has experience severe PTSD and severe Sleep Deprivation. He

began struggling with common symptoms of Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder

(PTSD), such as anxiety, deep depression, nightmares and hyper vigilance.

Once back home, these symptoms worsened. In addition, he experienced severe

rapid mood swings and, like many with PTSD, he struggled with trying to cope

on a daily basis with the severe PTSD he tried to live with and has been denied

his due benefits.

Volunteers Improving Virginia’s Standards Community Development

Corporation is located in the city of Chesapeake, Virginia that serves and

advocates for Disabled American Veterans(DAVS with Honorable or less-than-
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Honorable discharges. Its DAVS include DAV Taylor who served his nation

well, yet experience hardship due to being denied over and over again to qualify

for his VA Benefits with an Honorable Discharge.

DAV Lawrence Taylor served his country with distinction in the U. S.

Army, from November 11, 1976 until December 12, 1979, at just18 years old

and a MOS1C10.

After experiencing heavy artillery for three years while enlist and

indirect fire from the gunnery, he was exposed to heavy radio active machinery

that has been the reason for his severe heart problems, because he has had

extensive surgery and there are items placed in his heart in order for him to

maintain life.

DAV Taylor began struggling with severe symptoms of Post-Traumatic

Stress Disorder (PTSD), such as nightmares, flashbacks, anxiety, severe fear of

having more heart problems due to the heavy exposure to the radiation without

any proper protection.

Once back home, these symptoms worsened. DAV Taylor experienced

severe anxiety and rapid mood swings and, like many with severe PTSD, he

had to endure a severe heart attack and as previously stated above, he

constantly live with the thought of having to die before time taking large

amounts of medication, but denied the very VA Benefits that he needs in order

to prolong his life.
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Volunteers Improving Virginia’s Standards Community Development

Corporation is a Corporation located in Chesapeake, Virginia and serves and

advocates for Disabled American Veterans (DAVS) with Honorable or Other -

Than-Honorable Discharges. Its DAVS) which includes DAV Taylor who

served his nation well, yet experience hardship due to being denied VA Benefits

with an Honorable Discharge.

DAV Neal C. Morrison, Jr. served his country with distinction in the U. S.

Army, from May 28, 1975 until March 28, 1985, at just 21 years of age as a

SPC E3.

After experiencing intense combat during a training exercise (War Games)

a tank accidently drove over a cliff and landed upside down. The tank

commander was pinned under the tank. I and a few other Soldiers tried to keep

him calm. All this time he was dying before our eyes, screaming for help and

severely bleeding from his wounds to death. There was nothing that we could

do to assist him from the tragedy and to this day, I can still smell his blood.

At great physical and personal risk, I personally Court Martial a group of

drug dealers, who were Active Duty personnel. This was my duty and obligation

to my country. Each of them vowed that they would take their revenge on me

and my family. No matter how long it would take them. These men said they are

coming after me and my family for placing them in the Military Prison. I live in

fear of my life and the life of my family. Now these men are out of prison and it

has kept me in fear ever since they warned me.
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DAV Morrison has been struggling with severe Post-Traumatic Stress

Disorder (PTSD), such as nightmares, depression, anxiety, night sweats, fear,

anger and hyper vigilance.

Once back home, these symptoms worsened and Morrison experienced

continuous and severe and rapid mood swings and, like many with PTSD, he

has had to be placed on multiple medication that hasn’t assist with his

symptoms.

Volunteers Improving Virginia’s Standards Community Development

Corporation is a Corporation located in Chesapeake, Virginia and serves and

advocates for Disabled American Veterans (DAVS) with Honorable or Other-

Than-Honorable Discharges. Its DAVS which includes DAV Morrison who

served his nation well, yet experience hardship due to being denied VA

Benefits with a Honorable Discharge.

DAV Wendell Alonzo Willis served his country with distinction

from December 7, 1978, until May 6, 1983, as a Sargent in the U. S. Air Force.

Mr. Willis later was transferred to Oklahoma City, OK as an Info Sys Ops Spec, 7 yrs.

Captain Joseph C. Jones, USAF, MC on January 16, 1986, acknowledged Mr. Willis was

bitten between the left big toe and toe next toe to the left big toe by a recluse spider and

hospitalized for four to five days at Tinker Hospital. The effect over time had worsened

leaving Wendell in extreme pain, and depressed. Subsequently, Mr. Willis personal

injury claim filed by Clover Willis (sister, P.O.A.) during 2015, and his PTSD

claim for service connected disability compensation for injury or mental health
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conditions incurred or aggravated during his military service was denied.

Mr. Willis continued to suffer with, squamous cell carcinoma, and PTSD related

conditions, depression and anxiety disorder. Wendell A. Willis died on June 7,

2016. He received an Honorable discharge.

DAV Daniel DeLoach served his country in the U. S. Air Force with

distinction from January 6, 1999 until January 1, 2003 at 21 years of age and E1.

After experiencing intense combat of training and serving his country in his

job performance within the U. S. Air force he developed severe symptoms that has

caused him to enter a Medical Facility in order to understand what he was enduring

as his health seem to deteriorate.

DAV DeLoach discovered through the entering into the VA Medical Center,

he found that he was suffering with severe Post Traumatic Stress Disorder, severe

Sleep Deprivation, psoriatic arthritis, severe Alcoholism, substance abuse with

street drugs, baldness due to extreme stress, severe fits of rage, violence behavior

and homelessness.

DAV DeLoach began struggling with common symptoms of Post-Traumatic

Stress Disorder (PTSD) as previously stated above, he suffered with nightmares,

flashbacks, hyper vigilance which seem to have gotten worse when he entered the

Hampton VA Medical Center which he contribute his service connected ailments as

a direct result of his enlistment due to harsh treatment from officers in rank. This

continued when he returned home and these symptoms worsened, this is exactly
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why he sought out assistance within his stay with the Hampton VA Medical Center

where he spent several months to acquire the appropriate assistance.

In addition, he suffered ankle fracture, painful knee pain and severe

depression from burying multiple Veterans as an Honor Guard and received

a Honorable Discharge.

Volunteers Improving Virginia’s Standards Community Development

Corporation is a Corporation located in Chesapeake, Virginia and serves and

advocates for Disabled American Veterans (DAVS) with Honorable or Other-Than-

Honorable Discharges. Its DAVS includes DAV Daniel DeLoach who served his

nation well, yet experience hardship due to severe service connected ailments

which DAV DeLoach has sought out the appropriate assistance in order to cope

with what he had endured while serving in the U. S. Air Force with an Honorable

Discharge.

Dr. Vivian Anderson avers Veterans Affairs official have made contact

with the countless Disabled American Veterans which Dr. Vivian Anderson

serve for the purpose to attack or silence her by association, defame, slander,

and threaten Dr. Vivian A. Anderson by stipulating that Dr. Anderson wasn’t

credible enough to assist them with the processing of their individual Claims

for VA Benefits.

Tellingly, the officials tailored to fit the pursuit of circumstances of Dr.

Vivian Anderson current dispute with the Veterans Affairs and its unreasonable

delays and denials of DAVS Claims for VA Benefits which Dr. Vivian
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Anderson assist with as Retaliation and Discrimination against Dr. Vivian

Anderson as an Afro-American Agent/POA/Advocate and furthering their

unlawful purposes.

A large percentage of DAVS were rendered low percentage that Dr.

Vivian A. Anderson assist, and/or “Low Balled” the DAVS compensation on

many occasions.

Dr. Vivian Anderson has even had Senator Tim Kaine’s office staff

contact Dr. Vivian Anderson’s DAVS stipulating that she wasn’t credible

enough to file any type of VA correspondence for any DAVS.

Dr. Vivian Anderson has received countless of correspondence from

the Veterans Affairs with her name as he Agent/POA for the individual DAV

requesting further information, however, there are times Dr. Vivian Anderson

received nothing which can cause conflicting means of addressing the

Individual DAV’s Claim for VA Benefits as seen in the attached

correspondences.

In addition, there are contacts made by the DAVS receiving individual

correspondence that Dr. Vivian Anderson should receive stipulating that the

wrong VA Forms were submitted, but no correspondence was sent to Dr. Vivian

Anderson to make her aware of what was requested. This caused conflicts with

the DAVS and Dr. Vivian Anderson who has been blamed by the individual

DAV that Dr. Vivian Anderson didn’t file the appropriate VA Forms which

she wasn’t aware of that needed to be processed and submitted.
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The Veterans Affairs doesn’t intent on appropriately processing any

DAVS Claims for VA Benefits, because there is a terrible INJUSTICE that

has gone on too long and Dr. Vivian Anderson shouldn’t have to suffer for

the inappropriate manner that the Claims Intake Centers mishandle the

appropriate processing of the appropriate Claims submitted for VA Benefits.

Dr. Vivian Anderson has multiple Armed Forces members in her own

family and she has retired many years ago from the Naval Station Norfolk

where she was employed with the Fleet Accounting and Disbursing Office

and CINLANFLEET, once housed on Hampton Roads in Norfolk, Virginia.

Dr. Anderson studied law prior to becoming employed with the Naval Station

Norfolk, with the Legal Services Corporation out of Washington, D. C.,

educating the local Hampton Roads with Seminars on Know Your Rights

and assist with changes with in the Welfare Rights of the people before

Congress located in Washington, D. C.

Dr. Anderson has advocated for the many years rendering the DAVS

their individual 100% VA Benefits. She continues to defend the DAVS due

to severe negligence from the Army, NDRB or Veterans Affairs Claims Intake

Center, Debt Management, and several Senators office or NDRB staff members

who try to obstruct or hinder Dr. Anderson with malice or aforethought

towards her rendering the best to the DAVS, as retaliation against her without

probable causes. These staff members have contacted the DAVS, demeaning

her character, slandering or defaming her telling them that they shouldn’t use
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Dr. Vivian Anderson, because she isn’t credible enough to assist, deny or delay

their claims she files, but the aforementioned DAVS that she assist have

informed these entities that they would continue to work with Dr. Vivian

Anderson, as their representative because they couldn’t find anyone to properly

render them the appropriate assistance towards the filing of their individual

claims.

No matter what comes Dr. Vivian Anderson’s way, she is determined

to do everything to support and assist the DAVS to the best of her ability.

She writes and publishes the DAVS individual Stories, “IN MY OWN

WORDS.” In a 119 year old Black Press newspaper company, the New Journal

and Guide in order to allow the general population to understand how to

empower yourself when there are issues that causes DAVS, their families and

others who have faced similar problems to contacting her in order to acquire

their Claim for VA Benefit and/or standing your ground to eliminating

problems which violates your individual rights and privileges.

Dr. Anderson visit with DAVS who are sick and can’t come to her

location; she rehabilitate multiple DAVS’ homes with the assistance of the

Home Depot stipulating that they are more than willing to do all that they

can to assist in order to make the DAVS proud. This assistance is broadcast

within the local TV Stations on each job performed.
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Dr. Anderson have “Know Your Rights” Seminars and Workshops in

order to inform the local communities in the Hampton Roads area to

understand what their individual rights and privileges are.

Dr. Vivian Anderson meets with DAVS not only in Virginia, but

her name has reached many other states who have contacted her in order

to appropriately assist them with the processing of their individual claims.

Dr. Vivian Anderson has initiated monthly meeting for “Veterans In

Crisis” to show that their individual problems can be solved.

DAV Roy L. Perry-Bey and Phillip Webster, George Bowe, Anthony

Harold, Robert Lee Simpson, Clarence Lawson, Mary E. Hill, Cornell Morris,

Esper L. Hurdle, Jr., Earnest W. Gibbs, Walter Watson, Anthony Elliot, John G.

Taylor, Lawrence Taylor, Neal C. Morrison, Wendell Alonzo Willis and Daniel

DeLoach applied to the Veterans Affairs or NDRB for service connected

compensation or upgrades to their Honorable or less-than Honorable discharges

after recognizing that military or active duty injury or PTSD caused the erratic

behavior for which they were separated or discharged. They had reason to be

optimistic: the law requires the Army, Veterans Affairs or NDRB to give

"liberal" or "special" consideration to service-connected injury or discharge

upgrade applications based on credible claims of service-connected PTSD,

DAV Roy L. Perry-Bey, Phillip Webster, George Bowe, Anthony Harold,

Robert Lee Simpson, Clarence Lawson, Mary E. Hill, Cornell Morris, Esper

L. Hurdle, Jr., Earnest W. Gibbs, Walter Watson, Anthony Elliot, John G.
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Taylor, Lawrence Taylor, Neal C. Morrison, Wendell Alonzo Willis and Daniel

DeLoach applications provided clear evidence of mitigating service-connected

military or active duty injury or PTSD. Nevertheless, the Army, Air Force,

Navy, and U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs or NDRB denied their petitions,

that does not accurately reflect the character of their service or the mitigating

effect of their active duty injury or disease.

What neither DAV Roy L. Perry-Bey and Phillip Webster, George Bowe,

Anthony Harold, Robert Lee Simpson, Clarence Lawson, Mary E. Hill, Cornell

Morrison, Esper L. Hurdle, Jr., Earnest W. Gibbs, Walter Watson, Anthony

Elliot, John G. Taylor, Lawrence Taylor, Neal C. Morris, Wendell Alonzo

Willis nor Daniel DeLoach knew at the time was that the Army, Navy, Air

Force, Veterans Affairs and NDRB denies almost 90 percent of applications

alleging military or active duty PERSONAL INJURY, PTSD or PTSD-related

conditions.

The Army, Veterans Affairs or NDRB violates the Administrative

Procedure Act by issuing decisions that are arbitrary and capricious,

inconsistent with relevant statutory law, and deprive applicants of their First,

Fifth Amendment or Fourteenth Amendment rights to due process or equal

protection of law. The Army, U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs or NDRB's

actions in contravention of binding Department of Defense guidance indicate an

unconstitutional secret policy against granting service connected compensation

or discharge upgrades, which sets an unachievable and sometimes unknown
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evidentiary burden for applicants alleging personal injury or PTSD as a basis

for compensation or a discharge upgrade.

On behalf of themselves, and others similarly situated, Roy L. Perry-Bey,

and Phillip Webster, George Bowe, Anthony Harold, Robert Lee Simpson,

Clarence Lawson, Mary E. Hill, Cornell Morris, Esper L. Hurdle, Jr., Earnest

W. Gibbs, Walter Watson, Anthony Elliot, John G. Taylor, Lawrence Taylor,

Neal C. Morrison, Wendell Alonzo Willis and Daniel DeLoach ask the Court to

set aside and hold unlawful the Army, Navy, Air Force and the U.S. Department

of Veterans Affairs or NDRB's improper denials of their service connected

compensation or discharge upgrade applications. They request that this Court

enjoin the unlawful and unreasonable delay of their claims and attacks on Dr.

Anderson’s independent claim’s agent or representative approval and

discrimination or retaliation against Dr. Anderson and order the approval of

service connected compensation or discharge upgrade of Mr. Roy L. Perry-Bey,

Phillip Webster, George Bowe, Anthony Harold, Robert Lee Simpson, Clarence

Lawson, Mary E. Hill, Cornell Morris, Esper L. Hurdle, Jr., Earnest W. Gibbs,

Walter Watson, Anthony Elliot, John G. Taylor, Lawrence Taylor, Neal C.

Morrison, Wendell Alonzo Willis and Daniel DeLoach, so that their entitlement

and records may finally reflect the true character of their service.

Finally, Plaintiffs ask the Court to issue appropriate injunctive relief

to ensure that all Army, Air Force and Navy veterans may have their service
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connected compensation or discharge upgrade applications considered

according to the Constitution and as intended by Congress.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

1. This Court has jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. § 1331. This action

arises under the Administrative Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C. § 706.

2. Venue lies in this district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(e)(l)(C).

Plaintiffs DAV Mr. Roy L. Perry-Bey, Phillip Webster, George Bowe, Anthony

Harold, Robert Lee Simpson, Clarence Lawson, Mary E. Hill, Cornell Morrison,

Esper L. Hurdle, Jr., Earnest W. Gibbs, Walter Watson, Anthony Elliot, John G.

Taylor, Lawrence Taylor, Neal C. Morrison, Wendell Alonzo Willis and Daniel

DeLoach reside in Virginia. No real property is involved in the action.

Defendant Ryan McCarthy, Richard V. Spencer Heather Wilson and Robert

Wilkie is sued in their official capacity as an officer of the United States.

_______________________
2. TAKE JUDICIAL NOTICE: DAV Mr. Roy L. Perry-Bey, and all others similarly
situated who served were denied lawful entitlement to waivers or separation due to
a service-connected disability and injury or aggravated injury. See: Title 38 United
States Code.
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PARTIES

3. DAV Roy L. Perry-Bey, Phillip Webster, George Bowe, Anthony

Harold, Robert Lee Simpson, Clarence Lawson, Mary E. Hill, Cornell Morris,

Esper L. Hurdle, Jr., Earnest W. Gibbs, Walter Watson, Anthony Elliot, John

G. Taylor, Lawrence Taylor, Neal C. Morrison, Wendell Alonzo Willis and

Daniel DeLoach are veterans with service connected disease or injury, PTSD,

Honorable or less-than-Honorable discharges, and Dr. Vivian A. Anderson, is

a civil service retiree who reside in Virginia.

4. Roy L. Perry-Bey is an Virginia resident and veteran of the U.S. Army.
5. Phillip Webster is an Virginia resident and veteran of the U.S.Navy.
6. George Bowe is an Virginia resident and veteran of the U.S. Army.
7. Anthony Harrold is an Virginia resident and veteran of the U.S. Navy.
8. Robert Lee Simpson is an Virginia resident and veteran of the U.S.

Army.
9. Clarence Lawson is an Virginia resident and veteran of the U.S. Army.
10. Mary E. Hill is an Virginia resident and veteran of the U.S. Air

Force.
11. Cornell Morris is an Virginia resident and veteran of the U.S. Army.
12. Esper L. Hurdle, Jr., is an Virginia resident and veteran of the U.S.

Army.
13. Earnest W. Gibbs is an Virginia resident and veteran of the U.S.

Army.
14. Walter Watson is an Virginia resident and veteran of the U.S. Army.
15. Anthony Elliot is an Virginia resident and veteran of the U.S. Army.
16. John C. Taylor is an Virginia resident and veteran of the U.S. Army.
17. Lawrence Taylor is an Virginia resident and veteran of the U.S.

Army.
18. Wendell Alonzo Willis was an Virginia resident and veteran of the

U.S. Air Force.
19. Daniel DeLoach is an Virginia resident and veteran of the U.S. Air

Force
20. Dr. Vivian A. Anderson is an Virginia resident and DAVS agent.
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21. Defendant Ryan McCarthy, Secretary of the Army, is sued in his

official capacity. Congress has authorized the Secretary of the Army,

acting through the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs or ARBA, to

correct the improper denial of service connected compensation or

inequitable discharge of any former member of the Army. 10 U.S.C.

§ 1553(a); 32 C.F.R. § 70.9. 38 U.S.C § 1110. 38 CFR 3.310. (38 CFR

part 4). et seq.,

22. Defendant Richard V. Spencer, Secretary of the Navy, is sued

in his official capacity. Congress has authorized the Secretary of the Navy,

acting through the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs NDRB, to correct

the improper denial of service connected compensation or inequitable

discharge of any former member of the Navy or Marine Corps. 10 U.S.C.

§ 1553(a); 32 C.F.R. § 70.9. 38 U.S.C § 1110. 38 CFR 3.310. (38 CFR part

4). et seq.,

23. Heather Wilson, Secretary of the Air Force, is sued in her

official capacity. Congress has authorized the Secretary of the Air force,

acting through the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs NDRB, to correct

the improper denial of service connected compensation or inequitable

discharge of any former member of the Air Force. 10 U.S.C. § 1553(a); 32

C.F.R. § 70.9. 38 U.S.C § 1110. 38 CFR 3.310. (38 CFR part 4). et seq.,
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24. Defendant Robert V. Wilkie, Secretary Department of Veterans

Affairs, is sued in his official capacity. Congress has authorized the

Secretary of the Navy, acting through the U.S. Department of Veterans

Affairs, ARBA or NDRB, to correct the improper denial of service

connected compensation or inequitable discharge of any former member of

the Army, Air Force, Marine Crops and Navy. 10 U.S.C. § 1553(a); 32 C.F.R.

§ 70.9. 38 U.S.C § 1110. 38 CFR 3.310. (38 CFR part 4). et seq.,

REGULATORY BACKGROUND

25. Upon discharge from the U.S. Armed Forces, military personnel

receive a certificate that characterizes their service as Honorable, General

(Under Honorable Conditions), Other than Honorable, Bad Conduct, or

Dishonorable. 32C.F.R. §§ 724. 109, 724.111.

26. The discharge characterization affects each veteran's eligibility

for benefits and support services administered by the U.S.Department of

Veterans Affairs (VA), see, e.g., 38 U.S.C. § 101(2); 38 C.F.R. § 3.12, as

well as benefits and services provided by state laws.

27. To receive VA education benefits and services through the Post-

9/11 GI Bill program, a veteran must receive an Honorable discharge or be

discharged or released for a service-connected disability. 38 U.S.C. §§ 331

l(b)-(c).

28. The ARBA or NDRB reviews discharges for propriety and equity.

32 C.F.R. § 70.9.
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29. A veteran applying for a discharge upgrade at the ARBAorNDRB has

a right to two types of review:adocumentary records review and apersonal

appearance hearing.Id .§70.8(b)(3).

30. On September 3, 2014, then-Secretary of Defense Chuck Hagel

directed all records-correction boards to give "special consideration" to PTSD

diagnoses by the VA and "liberal consideration" to diagnoses of PTSD by

civilian providers when adjudicating discharge upgrade applications submitted

by veterans who have been diagnosed with PTSD. Memorandum from Chuck

Hagel, Secretary of Defense (Sept. 3, 2014) ("HagelMemo"). Ex. 1,

31. The Hagel Memo also directs military review boards to

consider PTSD and "PTSD-related conditions" as "potential mitigating factors

in the misconduct that caused the under other than honorable conditions

characterization of service."Id.

32. In 2016 Congress codified parts of the Hagel Memo. The

Discharge Review Boards are now statutorily required to grant "liberal

consideration" to the discharge upgrade applications of veterans with

symptoms related to PTSD or traumatic brain injury (TBI). 10 U.S.C.

§ 1553(d)(3)(A)(ii).

33. In particular, the Discharge Review Boards are mandated to

review each case "with liberal consideration to the former member that

post-traumatic stress disorder or traumatic brain injury potentially
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contributed to the circumstances resulting in the discharge of a lesser

characterization.” Id.

34. On August 25, 2017, citing a determination “that clarifications

are needed regarding mental health conditions,” Acting Under Secretary of

Defense for Personnel and Readiness Anthony M. Kurta issued additional

guidance clarifying that “[l]iberal consideration will be given to veterans

petitioning for discharge relief when the application for relief is based in

whole or in part on matters relating to mental health conditions.”

Memorandum from A.M. Kurta, Acting Under Secretary of Defense

for Personnel and Readiness (Aug. 25, 2017) (“Kurta Memo”). Ex. M

35. The ARBA or NDRB must respond to all issues relevant to

the decision whether to change the character of or reason for discharge.

32 C.F.R. § 70.8(d); DoD Instruction 1332.28, Discharge Review Board

Procedures and Standards (April 4, 2004).

36. When the ARBA or NDRB makes a factual determination

after considering contradictory evidence in the record, it must explain in

its decision “why the information relied upon was more persuasive than

the information that was rejected.” Id.

37. The ARBA or NDRB applies a “presumption of regularity

in the conduct of governmental affairs,” which can be overcome by

“substantial credible evidence.” Id. at § E3.2.12.6.
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38. When the ARBA or NDRB decides an application in part on

the truth of a certain event or circumstance, it is required by Department

of Defense regulations to “make a finding of fact for each such event or

circumstance.” Id. at § E3.5.3.2.2.

39. While the ARBA or NDRB may rely on the presumption of

regularity in making this finding of fact, “the decisional document shall set

forth the basis for relying on the presumption of regularity and explain the

reasons the contradictory evidence was insufficient to overcome the

presumption.” Id. At § E3.5.3.2.2.2.

40. The Boards for Correction of Military/Naval Records may also

correct military records. 10 U.S.C. § 1552. The statute does not require a

veteran to apply to both boards prior to seeking judicial review, nor does it

establish any sort of internal appeals process. Id.

41. Federal courts may review ARBA or NDRB decisions as final

agency actions under the Administrative Procedure Act. 5 U.S.C. §§ 702-06.

42. The Navy and other administrative agencies are responsible for

maintaining records for a variety of official purposes, including judicial

review of agency action. 5 U.S.C. § 552a(e)(5); 44 U.S.C. §§ 3101, 3301.

43. The ARBA or NDRB must also make all decisional documents

available for inspection and review by the public. 32 C.F.R. § 724.810.

Only names, addresses, social security numbers, and military service
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numbers may be redacted without written justification. 32 C.F.R.

§ 724.810(b).

44. These decisional documents must be indexed and in a usable

and concise form “so as to enable the public, and those who represent

applicants before the ARBA or NDRB, to isolate from all these decisions

that are indexed, those cases that may be similar to an applicant’s case

and that indicate the circumstances under or reasons for (or both) which

the ARBA, NDRB or the Secretary concerned granted or denied relief.”

32 C.F.R. § 724.810(d).

ALLEGATIONS AS TO THE CLASS GENERALLY

45. Since 2001, more than 2.7 million U.S. military personnel

including approximately one million Sailors and Marines have served on

active duty in Iraq and Afghanistan. Over half have deployed more than

once.

46. In that time, approximately fifteen percent of all service

members have left the military with Honorable or less-than-Honorable

discharges. By contrast, only seven percent of Vietnam-Era veterans

and less than two percent of World War II-Era veterans received less-

than-Honorable discharges.

47. These hundreds of thousands of veterans with Honorable,

or less-than-Honorable discharges are generally ineligible for numerous

benefits that their service has otherwise earned them.
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48. This includes compensation for service-connected disabilities,

special unemployment compensation programs for veterans, a military

burial, and benefits for surviving family members. Veterans with erroneous

Honorable Chapter 5, AR 635-40or a less-than-Honorable discharges are

categorically denied GI Bill education benefits and civil service retirement

credits, and they are generally denied veterans’ benefits provided by state

and local governments.

49. Without these benefits, veterans are unable to access the health

care they need, are forced to pay out of pocket for educational and

vocational training opportunities, and are left largely without the support

that is vital to ensuring a successful transition back into civilian life.

50. Furthermore, many employers reject applications from veterans

with less-than Honorable discharges, even when those discharges are

associated with only minor misconduct.

51. Employers regularly learn of an applicant’s discharge status

through a routine background check or by requesting that the veteran

submit their discharge certificate (called a “DD-214,” denoting Case the

acronym on the form provided by the U.S. Department of Defense upon

a military service member’s discharge from the military) with their

application.
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52. A Honorable Chapter 5, AR 635-40 or less-than-Honorable

discharge carries a stigma that casts doubt on a veteran’s personal character

and ability to perform as an employee.

53. A derogatory narrative reason for separation, which appears

with the discharge status on a veteran’s DD-214, can impose a similar or

additional stigma on discharged veterans.

54. For example, many Honorable Chapter 5, AR 635-40 or less-

than-Honorably discharged veterans receive a narrative reason for

separation of “personal injury” “personality disorder” or “misconduct”

without any additional explanation.

55. Many veterans with less-than-Honorable discharges were

discharged due to misconduct attributable to undiagnosed PTSD, TBI,

personal injury or other related mental health conditions that they

developed as a result of their military service or as a result of an

experience of military sexual trauma (MST).

56. PTSD is a psychiatric disorder that can result from

experiencing, witnessing, or confronting a traumatic event. Events that lead

to PTSD are frequently life-threatening. PTSD is the most prevalent mental

disorder arising from military service or combat experience, and it is also

frequently developed after sexual assault. Its symptoms include flashbacks

or nightmares relating to the traumatic event, avoidance of anything
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associated with the trauma, and hyper vigilance, which often manifests

in difficulty concentrating and irritability.

57. According to the VA, 11 percent of Afghanistan veterans and

20 percent of Iraq veterans suffer from PTSD. Similarly, 10 percent of Gulf

War veterans and 31 percent of Vietnam veterans have PTSD.

58. Researchers estimate that approximately 16 percent of service

members experience MST during their service. Victims are four times more

likely to suffer from PTSD compared to veterans with no sexual-assault

histories.

59. Researchers have found that, among U.S. Marines deployed to

Iraq and Afghanistan, Marines with a diagnosis of PTSD were eleven times

more likely to have a misconduct discharge compared to their peers who

did not have a psychiatric diagnosis.

60. The Government Accountability Office estimates that from

2011 to 2015, more than 57,000 service members were separated from the

military for misconduct despite a diagnosis of PTSD, TBI, or another

mental health condition that could be associated with misconduct.

61. This amounts to over 62 percent of all service members

separated for active duty injury or misconduct during the same period.

62. The Government Accountability Office, estimates that from

2011 to 2015, more than 57,000 service members were separated from

the military for misconduct despite a diagnosis of PTSD, TBI, or another
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mental health condition that could be associated with misconduct. This

amounts to 62 percent of all service members separated for misconduct

during the same period. Government Accountability Office, DOD Health:

Actions Needed to Ensure Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder and Traumatic

Brain Injury Are Considered in Misconduct Separations, GAO 17-260

(May 2017) (“GAO Report”). available at https://www.gao.gov/ assets/

690/684608.pdf

63. The military frequently fails to comply with its own screening,

training, and counseling policies related to PTSD and TBI. Out of 48

Marine Corps separation packets reviewed by the GAO, eighteen lacked

documentation showing that the service member had been screened for

PTSD and TBI. GAO Report, at 24. The Army or Navy lacks a PTSD

screening policy consistent with Department of Defense requirements.

Id. at 24.

64. Mental health issues and diagnoses carry pervasive societal

stigma that often deters individuals from seeking the help they need. This

stigma is no less acute within the military.

65. The Army, Air Force, Navy or Marines Corps have long shared

a culture of downplaying the severity and pervasiveness of active duty

injury or PTSD while stigmatizing those who seek compensation or

treatment.

https://www.gao.gov/assets/690/684608.pdf
https://www.gao.gov/assets/690/684608.pdf
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66. For example, in a 2014 speech to the Marines’ Memorial Club,

retired Marine Corps General James Mattis, now Secretary of Defense,

stated his opinion that “[f]or those who have been through [combat] and

the shock absorber wasn’t sufficient, there’s not too much we can do.”

67. He further stated that “there is one misperception of our

veterans and that is they are somehow damaged goods. I don’t buy it . . .

[w]hile victim hood in America is exalted, I don’t think our veterans should

join those ranks.” General Mattis concluded that “[t]here is also something

called post traumatic growth, where you come out of a situation like that

and you actually feel kinder toward your fellow man and fellow woman.”

68. However, compared to PTSD, which is widely studied and

officially recognized in the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental

Disorders (DSM), the concept of “post traumatic growth” is controversial.

69. A 2015 peer-reviewed study of more than 450 soldiers

deployed to Iraq found that “[those] who reported more post traumatic

growth had more post traumatic stress later on . . . . The findings are

inconsistent with the general idea that perceived growth has positive

implications for mental health after stressful events.” Iris M. Engelhard

et al. , Changing for Better or Worse? Post traumatic Growth Reported by

Soldiers Deployed to Iraq, 3 Clinical Psychol. Sci. 789, 794 (2015). https://

www. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC4168809/

https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC4168809/
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC4168809/


41

70. Veterans with Honorable or less-than-Honorable discharges as

a result of military, active duty injury or PTSD-related misconduct are

saddled with both the symptoms of their PTSD or related conditions and

the stigma of their discharge. As a result, nearly all of these veterans are

unable to obtain the disability, educational, and other kinds of benefits

to which their service otherwise entitles them.

71. The NDRB, like the Army, and Air Force Discharge Review

Boards, was established in the aftermath of World War II and is charged

with correcting improper or inequitable discharges.

72. In establishing the Discharge Review Boards, Congress

expressed an intent to avoid over-harsh consequences for service members

discharged as the result of mental health conditions. See, e.g., An Act to

Provide Federal Government Aid for the Readjustment in Civilian Life

of Returning World War II Veterans: Hearing on H.R. 3917 and S. 1776

Before the House Comm. on World War Veterans’ Legislation, 78th Cong

182 (1944) at 192; 78 Cong. Rec. 4453 (1944).

73. But contrary to the equitable purpose for which the NDRB was

established, in recent years the Navy has issued near-blanket denials to

Sailors and Marines seeking discharge upgrades in connection with PTSD,

TBI, and other mental health conditions.

74. According to records released by the Department of Defense

in settlement of a Freedom of Information Act lawsuit, since January 2016,
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the NDRB has granted discharge upgrades in just 15 percent of cases in

which PTSD was alleged to have been a contributing factor.

75. By contrast, in the same period and subject to the same legal

regime, the Army Discharge Review Board (ADRB) has granted discharge

upgrades in 45 percent of such cases, and the Air Force Discharge Review

Board (AFDRB) has granted discharge upgrades in 37 percent of such cases.

76. Since issuance of these binding instructions in 2014, the

NDRB has recognized that the Hagel Memo applies to its adjudications.

See also 10 U.S.C. § 1553(d)(3)(A)(ii) (as amended by Pub. L. 114-328,

Div. A, Title V, § 535, Dec. 23, 2016, 130 Stat. 2123-24) (codifying Hagel

Memo “liberal consideration” standard in DRB statute).

77. However, in a sample of 299 NDRB decisions issued since

2015, randomly selected from all decisions issued by the NDRB in that

period and published in the NDRB’s online reading room, the NDRB

cited the Hagel Memo in only 66 percent of cases involving allegations

or indications of PTSD or TBI and in only 44 percent of cases involving

allegations or indications of PTSD, TBI, or other related mental health

conditions.

78. In the cases sampled, where the NDRB fails to cite the Hagel

Memo despite allegations or indications of PTSD or PTSD-related

conditions, the NDRB also does not cite past decisions to explain why

it is citing the Hagel Memo in some but not other PTSD-related cases.
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79. On information and belief, the U.S. Department of Veterans

Affairs, ARBA or NDRB frequently denies veterans’ discharge upgrade

applications on the basis of the presumption of governmental regularity

without explaining why this presumption applies and why the contrary

evidence provided is insufficient to rebut it, particularly in view of the

federal statute that codifies the “liberal consideration” standard set forth

in the Hagel Memo.

80. The Defendants routinely loses documents of which it is

legally required to maintain possession. Even when Defendants loses

records that it has a duty to maintain, the U.S. Department of Veterans

Affairs, Navy or NDRB routinely draws an inference in favor of the

government, in derogation of spoliation of evidence principles.

81. In order to assist veterans in preparing their own discharge

upgrade applications, the NDRB is required to promptly publish all

discharge upgrade decisions to a publicly-available online reading room.

82. Despite its legal obligation to promptly make public all

decisional documents relating to discharge upgrade applications, the ARBA

or NDRB routinely delays such publication or altogether fails to publish

past decisions.

83. Without the benefit of clear and available prior decisions, the

U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs, ARBA or NDRB deprives applicants

of the opportunity to cite to cases that may be similar to their own case.
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Furthermore, even veterans with meritorious cases are often unaware of

how to satisfy the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs, ARBA or NDRB’s

unclear decisional standards due to the dearth of clear and available

precedent.

LEGAL CLAIMS OF THE CLASS

CLAIM I

Violation of Basic Entitlements 38 U.S.C. § 1110

84. Plaintiffs incorporates all their prior allegations.

85. For disability resulting from personal injury suffered or

disease contracted in line of duty, or for aggravation of a preexisting injury

suffered or disease contracted in the line of duty, in active military, naval,

or air service, during a period of war, the United States will pay to any

veteran thus disabled and who was discharged or released under conditions

other than dishonorable from the period of service in which said injury or

disease was incurred, or preexisting injury or disease was aggravated,

compensation as provided in this sub-chapter, but no compensation, shall

be paid if the disability is a result of the veteran’s own willful misconduct

or abuse of alcohol or drugs. 38 U.S.C.§ 1110.

CLAIM II

Violation of Presumption of Sound Condition 38 U.S. Code § 1111

86. Plaintiffs incorporates all their prior allegations.

87. For the purposes of section 1110 if this title, every veteran

shall be taken to have been in sound condition when examined, accepted,
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and enrolled for service, except as to defects, infirmities, or disorders noted

at the time of the examination, acceptance, and enrollment, or where clear

and unmistakable evidence demonstrates that the injury or disease existed

before acceptance and enrollment and was not aggravated by such service.

38 U.S. Code § 1111.

CLAIM III

Violation of Disabilities Aggravated By, Service-Connected Disease or Injury

88. Plaintiffs incorporates all their prior allegations.

89. (a) General. Except as provided in § 3.300(c), disability

which is proximately due to or the result of a service-connection is thus

established for a secondary condition, the secondary condition shall be

considered a part of the original condition. 38 CFR § 3.310 et seq.,

90. (b) Aggravation of non service-connected disabilities. Any

increase in severity of a nonservice-connected disease or injury, and not

due to the natural progress of the nonservice-connected disease, will be

service connected. 38 CFR § 3.310 et seq.,

CLAIM IV

Violations of the Administrative Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C. § 706(2)(A)
Arbitrary and Capricious Agency Action

91. Plaintiffs incorporates all their prior allegations.

92. The allegations of the preceding paragraphs are incorporated by

reference as if they were fully set forth herein.

93. Defendant’s denials of class members’ discharge upgrade

applications are final agency actions.
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94. The ARBA or NDRB grants only about 15 percent of the PTSD-

related applications before it, whereas the Army Discharge Review Board

which operates under the same statute, regulations, and guidance as the ARBA

or NDRB, including the Hagel Memo grants approximately 45 percent of

applications involving allegations of PTSD.

95. The enormous discrepancy in grant rates between the U.S.

Department of Veterans Affairs, NDRB and the ADRB results in part from the

NDRB’s systematic failure to give “special consideration” to veterans’ VA

diagnoses of PTSD or “liberal consideration” to diagnoses by private

practitioners, as directed by the Hagel Memo.

96. In failing to meaningfully apply the Hagel Memo to the class

members’ discharge upgrade applications, Defendant has acted arbitrarily and

capriciously, in abuse of his discretion, and contrary to law, in violation of the

Administrative Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C. § 706(2)(A).

97. The U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs, ARBA or NDRB only

cites the Hagel Memo in approximately two-thirds of cases involving PTSD

or TBI, but does not explain why it fails to cite the Memo in the other cases.

98. By failing to give reasons for applying relevant legal standards

in some cases, but not others, the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs, ARBA

or NDRB issues decisions that are arbitrary and capricious, in violation of the

Administrative Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C. § 706(2)(A).
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99. Defendants, acting through the U.S. Department of Veterans

Affairs, ARBA or NDRB, has further abused his discretion by failing to

explain the evidentiary standards under which discharge upgrade applications

are adjudicated.

100. This has made it impossible for veterans to know what evidence

the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs, ARBA or NDRB would credit, and

therefore impossible for these veterans to prepare their applications effectively.

101. Defendant’s failure, moreover, has made it impossible for

veterans to detect the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs, ARBA or NDRB’s

abuses of discretion when weighing evidence.

102. Defendants’ failure to publish evidentiary standards for discharge

upgrade applications constitutes arbitrary agency action, in violation of the

administrative Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C. § 706(2)(A).

103. Given the systematic problems with the Army, Air Force, Navy

and Marine Corps’ treatment and discharge of veterans with personal injury,

PTSD, TBI, and MST-related injury or misconduct, the U.S. Department of

Veterans Affairs, ARBA or NDRB’s application of the presumption of

regularity in government affairs is arbitrary and capricious, in violation of the

Administrative Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C. § 706(2)(A). This is particularly true

when the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs or NDRB applies the

presumption to all cases of missing records and fails to explain why the

presumption is not rebutted in the face of contrary evidence, as is required by
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the Department of Defense’s own regulations. DODI 1332.28 § E3.5.3.2.2.2.

CLAIM V

Violations of the Administrative Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C. § 706(2)(B)

Agency Action Contrary to Constitutional Right

104. Plaintiffs incorporates all their prior allegations.

105. The allegations of the preceding paragraphs are incorporated by

reference as if they were fully set forth herein.

106. The due process protections of the Fifth Amendment require that

federal administrative agencies follow their own regulations and sub-

regulatory guidance in conducting their adjudications and that they conduct

adjudications in a fair and orderly manner.

107. By not meaningfully applying the Hagel Memo to class members’

applications, Defendants has failed to follow its own rules, in violation of its

constitutional obligations and the Administrative Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C.

§ 706(2)(B).

108. The U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs, ARBA or NDRB only

cites the Hagel Memo in approximately two-thirds of cases involving personal

injury, PTSD or TBI, but does not explain why it fails to cite the Memo in the

other cases.

109. This means the burden of production of evidence to require the

Hagel Memo’s application in a particular case is unknown to veterans before

they apply. Veterans therefore lack the notice required by due process standards,

in violation of the Administrative Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C. § 706 (2) (B).
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110. Given the systemic problems with the Army, Air Force, Navy and

Marine Corps’ treatment and discharge of veterans with personal injury, PTSD

and TBI, the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs, ARBA or NDRB’s

application of the presumption of regularity in government affairs is likely

to result in a high risk of erroneous decisions, in violation of due process or

equal protection guarantees.

111. This is particularly true when the U.S. Department of Veterans

Affairs or NDRB applies the presumption in all cases of missing records and

fails to explain why the presumption is not rebutted in the face of contrary

evidence.

112. The failure of the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs, ARBA

or NDRB to explain how the presumption of regularity operates, when it is

rebutted, and why it is justified results in veterans lacking adequate notice of

the standards that will be used to adjudicate their applications. This violates

constitutional rights to equal protection or procedural due process, which is a

violation of the Administrative Procedure Act’s guarantee of constitutional

agency actions.

113. By not publishing evidentiary standards, Defendants has further

violated its constitutional obligations in violation of the Administrative

Procedure Act. Defendant’s secrecy on this point has made it impossible

for veterans to prepare effective applications or to understand how the U.S.

Department of Veterans Affairs or NDRB arrived at a given outcome, contrary
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to principles of fair adjudication.

114. Defendants’ failure to publish evidentiary standards has also

rendered the decision making process a black box where abuses of discretion

in weighing evidence are undetectable.

115. Finally, Defendants’ high rate of denying PTSD-related discharge

upgrade applications about 85 percent indicates that the U.S. Department of

Veterans Affairs, ARBA or NDRB has a systemic institutional bias or secret

policy that discriminates against applicants who suffer from active duty injury

or PTSD.

116. This secret policy is unfair and contrary to the Plaintiffs’

constitutional right to equal protection or due process because it contradicts

public guidance, such as the Hagel Memo, and because it underlies a sham

decision making process whereby denial is virtually preordained for applicants

before the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs, ARBA or NDRB due to

prejudice.

117. Veterans improperly denied service-connected compensation

or discharge upgrades are subjected to undue stigma as a result of both their

personal injury or discharge characterizations and their narrative reasons for

separation.

118. They are also denied access to VA benefits and other services

that they have rightfully earned through their service. Veterans are being

deprived of both a liberty and property interest in these unlawful adjudications.
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119. The U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs, ARBA or NDRB’s

secret policy that discriminates against applicants who suffer from active duty

injury or PTSD is contrary to Plaintiffs’ constitutional rights and in violation

of the Administrative Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C. § 706(2)(A).

CLAIM VI

Violations of the Administrative Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C. § 706(2)(C)

Agency Action in Excess of Statutory Authority or Short of Statutory Right

120. Plaintiffs incorporates all their prior allegations.

121. The allegations of the preceding paragraphs are incorporated by

reference as if they were fully set forth herein.

122. In establishing the NDRB, Congress recognized that an Other-

than-Honorable discharge issued to maintain military discipline should not be

a life sentence when a veteran has not acted out of moral turpitude, especially

when the veteran’s underlying misconduct may be attributable to the stressors

of combat and mental health conditions. 10 U.S.C. § 1553.

123. Congressional intent in establishing review boards such as the

NDRB was to protect veterans with Other-than-Honorable discharges from

being unjustly burdened with such life sentences.

124. The NDRB and ADRB are both governed by the same Department

of Defense statute, regulations, and guidance defining the standards for

discharge upgrades.
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125. Yet, the ADRB grants discharge upgrades at nearly four times the

rate that the NDRB does.

126. The Army and Navy’s comparatively low grant rate shows that

Army and Navy veterans are being denied their statutorily-mandated access to

service-connected compensation or the discharge upgrade procedures set forth

by Congress and implemented by the Department of Defense.

127. In its virtually categorical denial of service-connected

compensation or PTSD-related discharge upgrade applications, the Defendants

has failed to carry out Congress’ intent in establishing the Discharge Review

Boards and setting forth their governing standards, thereby exceeding its

authority, and has fallen short of vindicating the statutory right Congress

created for veterans, in violation of the Administrative Procedure Act,

5 U.S.C. § 706(2)(C).

CLAIM VII

Violations of the Administrative Procedure Act

128. Plaintiffs incorporates all their prior allegations.

129. The allegations of the preceding paragraphs are incorporated by

reference as if they were fully set forth herein.

130. Defendants’ denial, through the U.S. Department of Veterans

Affairs, ARBA or NDRB of DAV Roy L. Perry-Bey, Phillip Webster, George

Bowe, Anthony Harold, Robert Lee Simpson, Clarence Lawson, Mary E.

Hill, Cornell Morris, Esper L. Hurdle, Jr., Earnest W. Gibbs, Walter

Watson, Anthony Elliot, John G. Taylor, Lawrence Taylor, Neal C.
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Morrison, Wendell Alonzo Willis and Mr. Daniel DeLoach’s service-

connected injury or discharge upgrade application is a final agency action.

131. Defendants failed to give “liberal consideration” to their active

duty injury or PTSD and TBI diagnosis by a private practitioner as directed by

the Hagel Memo. Defendant thus failed to meaningfully apply the Hagel Memo

to DAV Roy L. Perry-Bey, Phillip Webster, George Bowe, Anthony Harold,

Robert Lee Simpson, Clarence Lawson, Mary E. Hill, Cornell Morris, Esper

L. Hurdle, Jr., Earnest W. Gibbs, Walter Watson, Anthony Elliot, John G.

Taylor, Lawrence Taylor, Neal C. Morrison, Wendell Alonzo Willis and

Daniel DeLoach’s applications, that under the Hagel Memo, they deserved

service-connected compensation or a discharge upgrade as a matter of equity

because the underlying cause of their injury or misconduct was service-

connected, combat-related PTSD, or a PTSD-related condition, because

their injury or misconduct was not premeditated or severe.

132. Defendants failed to consider important evidence that

demonstrated that Mr. Perry-Bey’s unprovoked physical assault, military or

active duty injury and PTSD or a PTSD related condition that led to his abrupt

Honorable discharge.

133. Defendants failed to follow its own rules by not responding to all

the facts and issues raised in DAV Roy L. Perry-Bey, Phillip Webster, George

Bowe, Anthony Harold, Robert Lee Simpson, Clarence Lawson, Mary E.

Hill, Cornell Morris, Esper L. Hurdle, Jr., Earnest W. Gibbs, Walter
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Watson, Anthony Elliot, John G. Taylor, Lawrence Taylor, Neal C.

Morrison, Wendell Alonzo Willis and Daniel DeLoach’s applications.

134. Defendants applied the presumption of regularity in government

affairs to DAV Roy L. Perry-Bey,Phillip Webster, George Bowe, Anthony

Harold, Robert Lee Simpson, Clarence Lawson, Mary E. Hill, Cornell

Morris, Esper L. Hurdle, Jr., Earnest W. Gibbs, Walter Watson, Anthony

Elliot, John G. Taylor, Lawrence Taylor, Neal C. Morrison, Wendell

Alonzo Willis and Daniel DeLoach's case without explaining why it was

justified given the missing records. Moreover, Defendants failed to provide

them with adequate notice of how to rebut such a presumption.

135. The U.S. Department of Virginia Affairs, ARBA or NDRB also

failed to explain why the presumption was not rebutted and why principles

of spoliation of evidence did not apply in DAV Roy L. Perry-Bey, Phillip

Webster, George Bowe, Anthony Harold, Robert Lee Simpson, Clarence

Lawson, Mary E. Hill, Cornell Morris, Esper L. Hurdle, Jr., Earnest W.

Gibbs, Walter Watson, Anthony Elliot, John G. Taylor, Lawrence Taylor,

Neal C. Morrison, Wendell Alonzo Willis and Daniel DeLoach's cases.

136. Defendants’ failure to meaningfully apply the Hagel Memo to

DAV Roy L. Perry-Bey, Phillip Webster, George Bowe, Anthony Harold,

Robert Lee Simpson, Clarence Lawson, Mary E. Hill, Cornell Morris, Esper

L. Hurdle, Jr., Earnest W. Gibbs, Walter Watson, Anthony Elliot, John G.

Taylor, Lawrence Taylor, Neal C. Morrison, Wendell Alonzo Willis and
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Daniel DeLoach's applications, and its failure to consider and respond to all

the facts and issues raised therein, were arbitrary and capricious, an abuse of

Defendants’ discretion, contrary to the due process protections of the Fifth

Amendment, and in excess of Defendants’ statutory authority, in violation of

the Administrative Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C. § 706(2).

COUNT VIII

Retaliation and Discrimination in Violation of the First Amendment

137. Plaintiff Vivian A. Anderson incorporates all her prior allegations.

138. The First Amendment prohibits retaliation by association for the

purpose of discriminating or retaliating against an individual for her advocacy or

speech.

139. Veterans Affairs officials have acknowledged, on countless occasions,

that Dr. Vivian A. Anderson legitimately represents DAVS claims to secure their

service connected disability compensation for injury or mental health conditions

incurred or aggravated during their military service. Tellingly, the Veterans

Affairs officials actions against Dr. Vivian A. Anderson is tailored to fit the

precise circumstances of Dr. Anderson’s current dispute with the Veterans

Affairs, and its purposeful discrimination or retaliation affect Dr. Anderson

specifically, and the DAVS she serve, and furthering their unlawful purposes.
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THE PROPOSED CLASS DEFINITION

140. This is a class action seeking equitable relief under Rule

23(b)(2) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure for violations of the

Administrative Procedure Act and the First or Fifth Amendment.

141. The proposed class includes all Army, Air Force and Navy

veterans who: (a) were discharged with Honorable, Honorable EPTS or

less-than-Honorable discharges (this includes General and Other-than

Honorable discharges) within the past thirty years; (b) have not received

service-connected compensation or discharge upgrades to Honorable; and

(c) have an active duty injury or diagnosis of PTSD or PTSD-related

conditions, or records documenting active duty injury or one or more

symptoms of PTSD or PTSD-related conditions at the time of discharge,

attributable to their military service under the Hagel Memo standards of

liberal or special consideration.

THE PROPOSED CLASS SATISFIES THE REQUIREMENTS OF RULE 23

142. The members of the proposed class are so numerous that

joinder of all members is impracticable. Based on the Army or Navy’s

disclosures in settlement of FOIA litigation, the NDRB has adjudicated

279 claims in 2016 and 2017 and has denied more than 85 percent of them.

143. Over 100,000 Army, Air Force, Sailors and Marines have

received less-than-Honorable discharges since 2002. Thousands of these

former service members suffered active duty injury or combat-related PTSD
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or PTSD-related conditions, TBI, or MST but received a Honorable or less-

than-Honorable discharge for personal injury or misconduct attributable to

these conditions.

144. Nearly all who applied for service-connected compensation or

a discharge upgrade to the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs, ARBA or

NDRB were denied.

145. The members’ injuries derive from a unitary course of conduct by

the centralized, hierarchical systems supervised and controlled by Defendants.

146. Many members of the proposed class suffer serious psychological

and physical consequences as a result of the long-term stigma associated with

their Honorable (EPTS) or less-than-Honorable discharges and the benefits

they are denied as a result of their discharge status. There are questions of law

and fact common to the proposed class, including, but not limited to, whether:

147. Defendants, acting through the U.S. Department of Veterans

Affairs, ARBA or NDRB, has failed to apply consistent standards in the

discharge upgrade review process, resulting in arbitrary and capricious

adjudications in violation of the Administrative Procedure Act;

148. Defendants, acting through the U.S. Department of Virginia

Affairs, ARBA or NDRB, has failed to comply with the September 2014 Hagel

Memo and its subsequent implementing guidance and statutory codification;

and
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149. Defendants, acting through the U.S. Department of Veterans

Affairs, ARBA or NDRB, has deprived Plaintiffs and putative class members

of protected liberty and property interests without due process of law, resulting

in an unconstitutional administrative process in violation of the Administrative

Procedure Act.

150. The claims of the individual Plaintiffs are typical of the claims of

the proposed class members.

151. Plaintiffs prose will fairly and adequately protect the interests of

the proposed class.

152. Defendants, in failing to properly implement the U.S. Department

of Veterans Affairs, ARBA or NDRB’s statutory mandate and by using unclear

and unlawful standards for service-connected compensation or discharge

upgrades, has acted or refused to act on grounds that apply generally to the

class, and therefore final injunctive relief and/or corresponding declaratory

relief is appropriate respecting the class as a whole.



59

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs respectfully request that the Court:

(1) Grant all appropriate and equitable monetary relief to redress current or

past injury, negligence due to denial of service connected compensation and to

restrain future injury of Plaintiffs, members of the proposed class and violation

of Dr. Vivian A. Anderson First Amendment rights by Defendants;

(2) Direct, by issuance of an injunction, measures sufficient to ensure that

Defendants establishes constitutionally and statutorily compliant adjudication

procedures, including, but not limited to, publication of secret policies,

improved training of agency personnel, and clarified evidentiary standards;

(3) Direct, by issuance of an injunction, measures sufficient to ensure that

Defendants meaningfully and consistently applies its own procedural standards

in considering the effects of class members’ active duty injury or PTSD when

determining whether to grant service-connected compensation or upgrade their

discharge statuses;

(4) Direct, by issuance of an injunction, that the discharge statuses of DAV

Roy L. Perry-Bey, Phillip Webster, George Bowe, Anthony Harold, Robert

Lee Simpson, Clarence Lawson, Mary E. Hill, Cornell Morris, Esper L.

Hurdle, Jr., Earnest W. Gibbs, Walter Watson, Anthony Elliot, John G.

Taylor, Lawrence Taylor, Neal C. Morrison, Wendell Alonzo Willis and

Daniel DeLoach be upgraded to Honorable or Honorable (“Service

Connected”);
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(5) Granting Plaintiffs’ $500,000,000 damages, fees, costs and litigation

expenses; and

(6) Grant any other and further relief that the Court deems just and equitable.

(7) Plaintiff’s does hereby give notice for leave to file an amended complaint

pursuant to local applicable rules of the Court and supplementary pleadings and,

request competent legal counsel be timely appointed to assist in the preparation

of any further responsive pleadings, affidavits, briefs, discovery, etc., on the

ground that plaintiffs’ lacks the financial capability to investigate the critical

issues that are so complex that, as a pro se litigates, they can not reasonably

be required to present this case with any effectiveness; that legal assistance is

necessary and in the interest justice for the fair presentation of a proper case to

the Court.
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DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Dated: July 29, 2019
Norfolk, Virginia

Respectfully submitted,

Mr. Roy L. Perry-Bey
89 Lincoln Street #1772

Hampton, VA 23669
(917) 941-3352

Mr. Phillip Webster
542 Briar Hill Road,
Norfolk, VA 23502

Mr. George Bowe
1028 King Arthur Drive
Chesapeake, VA 23323

Mr. Anthony Harold
613 Goff Street,

Norfolk, VA 23510

Mr. Robert Simpson
1574 North King Street,

Hampton, VA 23669

Mr. Clarence Lawson
2050 Kennedy Street,

Chesapeake, VA 23322

Ms. Mary E. Hill
P.O. BOX 6008

Suffolk, VA 23433

Esper L. Hurdle, Jr.
1107 Freedom Avenue
Portsmouth, VA 23701
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Ernest W. Gibbs
904 Broad Meadows

Virginia Beach, VA 23462

Walter Watson
904 Broad Meadows Apts
Virginia Beach, VA 23462

Anthony Elliott
5440 Barnhollow Road

Norfolk, VA 23502

Cornell Morris
138 Coldtaine Court

Portsmouth, VA 23791

John G. Taylor
904 Broad Meadows Apts

904 Broad Meadows
Virginia Beach, VA 23462

Mr. Neal C. Morrison, Jr.
3504 Executive Center Drive Apt 302,

Chesapeake, VA 23321

Lawrence Taylor
904 Broad Meadows Apts
Virginia Beach, VA 23462

Ronald M. Green, as Special Personal
Representative of the Estate of Wendell Alonzo Willis

5540 Barnhollow Road
Norfolk, VA 23502

Dr. Vivian A. Anderson
1812 Gannet Court,

Chesapeake, VA 23320
(757) 831-0899

Mr. Daniel DeLoach
967 Ingleside Road
Norfolk, VA 23502


